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DECILLARATION OF REVENUE AGENT GEORGE BEAS
I, GEORGE BEAS, declare and state as follows:

1. Tam a Revenue Agent of the Internal Revenue Service, with my post of

duty at Los Angeles, California. In the course of my duties I was assigned to
assist in the investigation of the tax matters of Joseph R. Francis for the tax years
2002 and 2003. A criminal investigation of Mr. Francis by the Government
resulted in an indictment for tax evasion being filed against Mr, Francis. In
addition to gathering other information in the course of my investigation, I closely
followed the criminal prosecution against Mr. Francis. Based on the materials
gathered in my investigation, I believe the facts set forth below to be true and
correct to the best of my knowledge. |

2. Mantra Films, Inc. (“Mantra Films”) was incorporated on November 25,
1998. Plaintiff is the president, Chief Executive Officer, and sole shareholder of
Mantra Films. Mantra Firms is an S Corporation for tax purposes, so its income
and losses are passed through to its shareholder, who must then report the income
or loss on his own individual income tax returns. |

3. Sands Media, Inc. (“Sands Media™) was incorporated on January 16,
2001. Plaintiff is the president, Chief Executive Officer, and sole shareholder of
Sands Media, Inc. Sands Media also elected to be treated as an S Corporation for
tax purposes.

4. Rothwell Limited is a Cayman Islands corporation formed in 2000. In or
about July 2001, an investment brokerage account was opened with Morgan
Stanley in Irvine, California, on behalf of Rothwell Limited. In an effort to
conceal his beneficial ownership of this brokerage account, plaintiff caused
Morgan Stanley to open the Rothwell Limited account by using nominee
signatories. An individual named Colin Chaffee is listed as the administrator
and/or signatory for the Rothwell Limited brokerage account with Morgan

Stanley. On or about November 19, 2001, plaintiff also caused Rothwell Limited
2
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to open a bank account at the Bermuda Commercial Bank Limited, in Hamilton,
Bermuda, again by using nominee signatories. Although the account at Morgan
Stanley is held in the name of Rothwell Limited, plaintiff admitted that he is the
beneficial owner of that account when he pled guilty to two criminal counts that
charged plaintiff with fraudulently omitting interest income from the Rothwell
Limited account on his original and amended tax returns for 2003. Plaintiff also
pled guilty to one charge of bribing a public official under 18 U.S.C. §
201(c)(1)(A).

5. Asia Pacific Mutual Insurance Company (“Asia Pacific”) is purported to
be a business insurance company located in Vanuatu.

6. Plaintiff's 2001 tax return was examined by the IRS with regards to,
among other things, a TEFRA tax shelter scheme. Plaintiff has petitioned the
United States Tax Court with respect to the TEFRA tax deficiency determined on
his 2001 return. That case is currently pending before the Tax Court.

7. On April 11, 2003, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury and filed
with the IRS a 2002 U.S. Income Tax Return for his S Corporation, Mantra Films,
which falsely claimed deductions totaling $1,002,141.50 for professional services
and "footage" expenses, while that money was actually used for the construction
of a residence in Punta Mita, Mexico (“Mexico Residence™). This tax return
included a false “insurance” expense of $333,333.33 for a payment made to Asia
Pacific, purported to be a business insurance company located in Vanuatu.

8. On or about March 25, 2003, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury
and filed with the IRS a 2002 U.S. Income Tax Return for his S Corporation,
Sands Media, which falsely claimed a $3,784,390 deduction for consulting
services, while that money was actually used for construction of the Mexico
Residence. The 2002 tax return also included a false “insurance” expense of
$500,000 for a payment made to Asia Pacific, and a false consulting services

expense of $10,411,020, also used for the construction of the Mexico Residence.
3
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9. Plaintiff also signed under penalty of perjury and filed with the IRS, a
false 2002 U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, that substantially
understated his true income and tax due and owning for the taxable year 2002
because it both omitted $136,518 of interest income earned on the Rothwell
Limited account, and it carried through the false deductions taken on the S
corporation returns. Additionally, plaintiff transferred or caused to be transferred
$1,055,980 from a Rothwell Limited account, and a second account, to Casablanca
de Punta Mita, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican corporation, which was used for the
purchase of a residential building lot in Punta Mita, Mexico. |

10. On or about March 21, 2004, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury and
filed with the IRS a 2003 U.S. Income Tax Return for his S Corporation, Mantra
Films, which falsely claimed a deduction of $50,000 for "footage" expenses, while
the money was actually used for the construction of the Mexico Residence. The
return also claimed a false insurance expense deduction 0f$1,666,666.67 paid to Asia
Pacific.

11. On or about March 21, 2004, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury and
filed with the IRS a 2003 U.S. Income Tax Return for his S Corporation, Sands
Media, which falsely claimed a deduction of $427,269 for professional fees, while the
money was actually used for the construction of the Mexico Residence. The return
also claimed a false insurance expense deduction of $2,500,000, paid to Asia Pacific.

12. On or about April 15, 2004, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury and
filed with the IRS a false 2003 U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, that
understated his true income and tax due and owning for the taxable year 2003,
because it both omitted $562,883 of interest income earned on the Rothwell Limited
account, and it carried through the false deductions taken on the S corporation
returns. Additionally, in 2005, in order to make use of his unreported income,
plaintiff transferred or caused to be transferred $1,023,023.65 from the Rothwell

Limited brokerage account which was used for the purchase of a residential building
4
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lot adjacent to the Mexico Residence. Plaintiff’s Amended 2003 U.S. Individual
Income Tax Return, filed on or about April .12, 2006, also failed to report the interest
income earned on the Rothwell Limited account.

13. On October 4, 2002, plaintiff established Blue Horse Trading, LLC, as
a means to pay, and claim fraudulent tax deductions through Mantra Films, for the
operating costs of his personal residence in Los Angeles. Plaintiff is the only
member of Blue Horse Trading, and thus plaintiff takes tax deductions for the
exﬁenses of Blue Horse Trading because those items are passed through to
plaintiff and reported on his individual income tax returns.

14. On November 5, 2002, Blue Horse Trading purchased plaintiff’s
personal residence in Los Angeles. The initial deposits for the purchase of the
property were made by plaintiff, but the final purchase amount of $5,450,000 was
paid by Blue Horse Trading from a transfer it received from plaintiff’s personal
account with Morgan Stanley. Starting in December 2002, Mantra Films began
leasing plaintiff’s personal residence from Blue Horse Trading. Plaintiff, via the
pass-through of the losses from Blue Horse Trading, deducted all of the expenses
related to the maintenance of his personal residence on his personal tax return.

15. On March 3, 2008, pursuant to a Grant Deed where no transfer tax was
paid, Blue Horse Trading granted title to his personal residence to plaintiff. On
the same day, with title for the personal residence in his name, plaintiff and
Washington Mutual Bank recorded a Deed of Trust for a promissory note, wherein
plaintiff borrowed $5 million and used the personal residence as collateral for the
loan. Attached hereto and marked Exhibit A is a redacted copy of the Deed of
Trust. One day later, on March 4, 2008, pursuant to a Grant Deed where again no
transfer tax was paid, plaintiff granted title to his personal residence back to Blue
Horse Trading.

16. On April 11, 2007, a federal grand jury in the District of Nevada

indicted plaintiff on two counts of tax evasion in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7201 for
5
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taxable years 2002 and 2003. On September 23, 2009, in the case entitled United
States v. Joseph R. Francis, CR 08-494 (U.S.D.C., C.D. Ca.), plaintiff pled guilty
to a three-count Information. Plaintiff admitted to two violations of 26 U.S.C. §
7207 with respect to the 2003 tax year, admitting that he willfully filed his 2003
U.S. Personal Income Tax Return and his Amended 2003 U.S. Personal Income
Tax Return knowing that the returns were false as to a material matter in that they
omitted interest income earned on the Rothwell Limited Morgan Stanley account,
On November 6, 2009, the Court sentenced plaintiff.

17. On October 15, 2009, after the plea agreement was entered but prior to
imposition of his sentence, plaintiff signed under penalty of perjury and filed his
2008 individual income tax return with the IRS. On Schedule B of plaintiff’s
return, plaintiff did not list the interest income earned on the Rothwell Limited
Morgan Stanley account, but rather stated via footnote that he is “the subject of a
criminal tax case and, as a result, has claimed his constitutional privilege against
self-incrimination under the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution on
various parts of this tax return. His claim of privilege is indicated by one or more
asterisks (****).” Plaintiff included a lengthy footnote, wherein he stated in part
that “[t]he taxpayer’s efforts to obtain complete information is ongoing and if, in
the future, the taxpayer receives information that’s inconsistent, contradicts or
causes a calculation or anything else to materially change, the taxpayer will file an
amended return to 1) accurately report the changed position and calculation
2) ascertain and confirm that all material federal tax issues have been considered
and fairly addressed, and 3) arrive at a conclusion which is supported by the law
and facts as stated.” To date, plaintiff has not filed an Amended 2008 Individual
Income Tax return.

18. On November 6, 2009, the IRS notified plaintiff that a determination had
been made that jeopardy existed with respect to the ability of the IRS to collect the

2001, 2002, and 2003 income tax liabilities of plaintiff, in the following amounts:
6
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Period Tax Penalty Interest

2001 $9,009,940.00 $3,603,976.00 $5,044,443.00
2002 $4,359,031.00 $3,269,273.00 $3,610,278.14
2003 $1,997,166.00 $1,497,875.00 1,427,106.00

19. The jeopardy tax assessment made by the IRS for the 2002 taxal?le
year, which is the subject of the instant action, arose from the following
adjﬁstments to plaintiff’s 2002 income tax return:

A. Tincluded interest income earned on the Rothwell Limited
account with Morgan Stanley, in the amount of $136,518.

B. Plaintiff reported a Schedule C loss relating to Blue Horse
Trading, LLC in the amount of $101,910, which I disallowed.

C. The decrease to plaintiff’s reported capital gain by $3,000 is a
computation adjustment that resulted from the flow-through adjustments generated
from plaintiff’s S corporations, Mantra Films and Sands Media.

D. The increase to plaintiff’s S corporations (Mantra Films and
Sands Media) income in the total amount of $16,133,836 are flow-through
adjustments made to the corporations’ returns. The S corporations’ income
increased because I disallowed certain expenses taken on the corporations’ returns.

1. I disallowed expenses claimed by Mantra Films in the total
amount of $1,438,525.63.

2. I disallowed expenses claimed by Sands Media in the total
amount of $14,695,310.

3. Disallowing these expenses on plaintiff’s corporation’s
returns results in an increase of the corporations’ income in the total amount of
$16,133,836. As plaintiff is the 100% shareholder of these corporaﬁons, this
income was included on plaintiff’s 2002 income tax return.

E. The remaining adjustments to plaintiff’s 2002 return are

computational in nature.
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F. The penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6663 (fraud penalty) was calculated
to be $3,269,273. This penalty is 75% of the balance due of the understatement of
tax, which for 2002 was $4,359,031.00.,

G. Pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6601, interest on the amount due and
owing, which includes the understatement and penalty, was computed to be
$3,610,278.14.

20. The jeopardy tax assessment made by the IRS for the 2003 tax year,
which is the subject of the instant action, arose from the following adjustments to
plaintiff’s 2003 income tax return:

A. Tincluded interest income earned on the Rothwell Limited
account with Morgan Stanley, in the amount of $562,883.

B. Plaintiff reported a Schedule C loss relating to Blue Horse
Trading, LLC, in the amount of $16,135, which I disallowed.

C. The decrease to plaintiff’s reported capital gain by $3,000 is a
computational adjustment that resulted from the flow-through adjustments
generated from plaintiff’s S corporations, Mantra Films and Sands Media.

D. The increase to plaintiff’s S corporations (Mantra Films and
Sands Media) income in the total amount of $5,421,951 are flow-through
adjustments made to the corporations’ returns. The S corporations’ income
increased because I disallowed certain expenses taken on the corporations’ returns.

1. Idisallowed expenses claimed by Mantra Films in the total
amount of $2,494,682.

2. I disallowed expenses claimed by Sands Media in the total
amount of $2,927,269.

3. By disallowing these expenses on the corporations’ returns,
the result is an increase of these corporations’ income in the total amount of
$5,421,951 for taxable year 2003. As plaintiff is the 100% sharcholder of these

corporations, this income is to be included on plaintiff’s 2003 income tax return.

8
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E. The remaining adjustments to plaintiff’s 2003 return are
computational in nature.

F. The penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6663 (fraud penalty) was calculated
to be $1,497,875. This penalty is 75% of the balance due of the understatement of
tax, which for 2003 was $1,997,166.

G. Pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6601, interest on the amount due for
2003, which includes the understatement and penalty, was computed to be
$1,427,106.

2]. The amount of the jeopardy tax assessment made by the IRS for the
2001 taxable year arises from the case of JRF Investments 2001 LLC, et. al. v.

Commissioner, Docket No. 5699-07, currently pending before United States Tax
Court. The jeopardy assessment for 2001 is in the same amount at issue before the
Tax Court. Additionally, because the amount at issue before the Tax Court
involves the fiscal year 2001, it straddles plaintiff’s taxable years 2001 and 2002
as to plaintiff’s personal liabilities.

1

"

1
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22. Prior to the jeopardy assessment for 2001, the amount at issue before
the Tax Court was not assessed, but was a pending liability. As an unassessed
pending liability, it was subject to the same jeopardy factors as the 2002 and 2003
liabilities.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATED: O/ / oF /QZ o /o in Los Angeles, California.

evrne
GEORGE BEAS
Revenue Agent

10
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DEFINITIONS

Words uséd in multiple sections of this document are defined below and other words are defined
in Sections 3, 11, 13, 18, 20 and 21. Certain rules regarding the usage of words used in this
document are also provided in Section 16.

(A} "Security Instrument” means this document, which is dated FEBRUARY 01, 2008 .

together with all Riders to this document.
{(B) "Borrower" is JOSEPH FRANCIS, A SINGLE MAN

Borrower’s address is q LOS ANGELES, CA 90077
' morrower is the trustor under this Security Instrument.-

{C) "Lender” is wASHINGTON MUTUAL BANK, FA

Lender is 8 FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK
organized and existing under the laws of THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

CALIFORNIA — Single Family - Fannis Mae/Freddie Mac UNIFORM INSTRUMENT Form 3005 1/01

@), ~6ICA} o207 ' o
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Lender's address is 2273 N, GREEN VALLEY PARKWAY, SUITE 14, HENDERSON, NV

89014 :
Lender is the beneficiary under this Security Instrument,

{D) "Trustee” is CALjFORNIA RECONVEVANCE COMPANY, A CALIFORNIA CORP

(E) "Note" means the promissory note signed by Borrower and dated FEBRUARY 01, 2008

The Note states that Barrower owes l.ender ¢ |vE MILLION AND 00/100
Dollars

(US.$ 5 000,000.00 ) plus interest, Borrower has promised to pay this debt in regular
Periodic Payments and to pay the debt in full not later than MaARCH 01, 2038 .
{F) "Property” means the property that is described below under the heading "Transfer of Rights
in the Property.” :

(G) "Loan" means the debt evidenced by the Note, plus interest, any prepayment charges and late
charges due under the Note, and all sums due under this Security Instrument, plus interest.

(H) "Riders" means all Riders to this Security Instrument that are executed by Borrower, The
following Riders are to be executed by Borrower {(check box as applicable):

Adjustable Rate Rider [} Condominium Rider Second Home Rider
Balloon Rider [_| Planned Unit Development Rider Other{s) [specify]
1-4 Family Rider ) Biweekly Payment Rider

(I} "Appliceble Law" means all controlling applicable federal, state and local statutes,
regulations, ordinances and administrative rules and orders (that have the effect of law) as well a5
alt applicable final, non-appealable judicial opinions.

() "Community Association Dues, Pecs, and Assessmenis” means all dues, fees,
assessments and other charges that are imposed on Borrower or the Property by a condominium
association, homeowners association or similar organization.

(K) "Electronic Funds Transfer" means any transfer of funds, other than a transaction
originated by check, draft, or similar paper instrument, which is initiated through an electronic
terminal, telephonic instrument, computer, or magnetic tape 50 as o order, instruct, or authorize
a financial institution to debit or credit an account. Such term includes, but is not [imited to,
point-of-sale transfers, automated teller machine transactions, transfers initiated by telephone, wire
transfers, and automated clearinghouse transfers.

(L) "Escrow Items" means those items that are described in Section 3.

(M) "Miscellaneous Proceeds” means any compensation, settlement, award of damages, or
proceeds paid by any third party (other than insurance proceeds paid under the coverages
described in Section 5) for: (i} damage to, or destruction of, the Property; (ii) condemnation or
other taking of all or any part of the Property; (iii) conveyance in lieu of condemnation; or {iv)
misrepresentations of, or omissions as to, the value andfor condition of the Property.

(N) "Mortgage Insurance” means insurance protecting Lender against the nonpayment of, or
default on, the Loan,

(O) "Periodic Payment" means the regularly scheduled amount due for {i} principal and
interest under the Note, plus {ii) any amounts under Section 3 of this Security Instrument.

(P) "RESPA" means the Real Estate Settiement Frocedures Act (12 US.C. Section 2601 et seq.)
and its implementing regulation, Regulation X (24 C.F.R. Part 3500), as they might be amended
from time to time, or any additional or successor legislation or regulation that governs the same
subject matter, As used in this Security Instrument, "RESPA" refers to all requirements and

@R, BICA) wnn S Farm 3005 1/01
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v

restrictions that are imposed in regard to a "federally related mortgage loan” even if the Loan
does not qualify as a "federally related mortgage loan” under RESPA,

{Q) "Successor in Interest of Borrower” means any party that has taken title to the Property,
whether or not that party has assumed Borrower's obligations under the Note andlor this Security
Instrument. '

'TRANSFER OF RIGHTS IN THE PROPERTY

This Security Instrument secures to Lender: {i) the repayment of the Loan, and all renewals,
extensions and modifications of the Note; and (ii) the performance of Borrower's covenants and
agreements under this Security Instrument and the Note. For this purpose, Borrower irrevocably
grants and conveys to Trustee, in trust, with power of sale, the following described property
focated in the COUNTY of LOS ANGELES o
[Type of Recording Jurisdiction] {Name uf Recording Jurisdiction) »
THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS ATTACHED HERETO AS A SEPARATE EXHIBIT ﬁ
AND |'S MADE A PART HEREOF, ,

Par ! ' 0~019-023

which currently has the address of
. . {Streot)
LOS ANGELES . ' (Citg)» California 80077  1Zip Cudel

("Property Address"):

TOGETHER WITH all the improvements now or hereafter erected on the property, and all
easements, appurtenances, and fixtures now or hereafter a part of the property. All replacements
and zdditions shall also be covered by this Security Instrument. All of the foregoing is referred to
in this Security Instrument as the "Property.”

. BORROWER COVENANTS that Borrower is tawfully seised of the estate hereby conveyed

and has the right to grant and convey the Property and that the Property is unencumbered, escept -

for encumbrances of record. Borrower warrants and will defend generally the title to the Property
against all ¢laims and demands, subject to any encumbrances of record.

THIS SECURITY INSTRUMENT combines uniform covenants for national use and
non-uniform covenants with limited variations by jurisdiction to constitute a uniform security
instrument covering real property.

UNIFORM COVENANTS. Borrower and Lender covenant and agree as follows:

[. Payment of Principal, Interest, Escrow Items, Prepayment Charges, and Late
Charges. Borrower shall pay when due the principai of, and interest on, the debt evidenced by the

Inihu[-ﬁ-

G, ~GICA} w207 . Page 3 of 15 Form 3005 1/01
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Note and any prepayment charges and late charges due under the Note. Borrower shall also pay
funds for Escrow Items pursuant to Section 3. Payments due under the Note and this Security
Instrument shall be made in U.S. currency. However, if any check or other instrument received by
Lender-as payment under the Note or this Security Instrument is returned to Lender unpaid,
Lender may require that any or all subsequent payments due under the Note and this Security
Instrument be made in one or more of the following forms, as selected by Lender: (a) cash; (b)
money order; (c) certified check, bank check, treasures's check or cashier’s check, provided any
such check is drawn. upon an institution whose deposits are insured by 2 federal agency,
instrumentality, or entity; or {d) Electronic Funds Transfer, '

Payments are deemed received by Lender when received at the location designated in the
Note or at such other location as may be designated by Lender in sccordance with the notice
provisions in Section 15, Lender may return any payment or partial payment if the payment or
partial payments are insufficient to bring the Loan current. Lender may accept any payment or
partial payment insufficient to bring the Laan current, without waiver of any rights hereunder or
prejudice to its rights to refuse such payment or partial payments in the future, but Lender is not
obligated to apply such payments at the time such peyments are accepted. If each Periodic
Payment is applied as of its scheduled due date, then Lender need not pay interest on unapplied
funds. lLender may hold such unapplied funds until Borrower makes payment to bring the Loan
current. If Borrower does not do so within a reasonable period of time, Lender shall cither apply
such funds or return them to Borrower, If not applied earlier, such funds will be applied to the
outstanding principal balance under the Note immediately prior to foreclosure. No offset or claim
which Borrower might have now or in the future against Lender shall relieve Borrower from
making payments due under the Note and this Security Instrument or performing the covensnis
and agreements secured by this Security Instrument,

2. Application of Payments or Proceeds. Except as otherwise described in this Section 2,
all payments accepted and applied by Lender shall be applied in the following order of priority:
(a) interest due under the Note; (b} principal due under the Note; (¢} amounts due under Section
3. Such payments shall be applied to each Periodic Payment in the order in which i1 became due.
Any remaining amounts shall be applied first to late charges, second to any other amounts due
under this Security Instrument, and then to reduce the principal balance of the Note.

" If Lender receives a payment from Borrower for a delinquent Periodic Payment which
includes a sufficient amount to pay any late charge due, the payment may be applied to the
delinglient payment and the late charge. 1f more than one Periodic Payment is outstanding, Lender
may apply any payment received from Borrower to the repayment of the Periodic Payments if,
and to the extent that, each payment can be paid in full. To the extent that any excess exists after
the payment is applied to the full payment of one or more Periodic Payments, such excess may be
applied to any late charges due. Voluntary prepayments shall be applied first to any prepayment
charges and then as described in the Note.

Any application of payments, insurance proceeds, or Miscellaneous Proceeds to principal due
under the Note shall not extend or postpone the due date, or change the amount, of the Periodic
Payments.

3. Funds for Escrow Items. Borrower shall pay to Lender on the day Periodic Payments
are due under the Note, until the Note is paid in full, a sum {the "1*unds"} to provide for payment
of amounts due for: {a) taxes and assessments and other items which can attain priority over this
Security Instrument as a lien or encumbrance on the Property; (b) leasehold payments or ground
rents on the Property, it any; (¢} premiums for any and all insurance required by Lender under
Section 5; and (d) Mortgage Insurance premiums, if any, or any sums payable by Borrower to
Lender in lieu of the payment of Mortgage [nsurance premiums in accordance with the provisions
of Section 10. These items are called "Escrow ltems.” At origination or at any time during the
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